

VILLAGE OF BAYVILLE

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

ON PROPOSED LOCAL LAW

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that, for the purpose of adopting a codification of the local laws, ordinances and certain resolutions of the Village of Bayville, said codification to be known as the “Code of the Village of Bayville,” a public hearing will be held by the Board of Trustees at the Village Hall 34 School St. Village of Bayville, NY on **the 22nd day of August 2022, at 6:45 p.m.**, to consider the enactment of the proposed local law described and summarized below:

PROPOSED LOCAL LAW NO. 2022-C

A LOCAL LAW TO PROVIDE FOR THE CODIFICATION OF THE LOCAL LAWS, ORDINANCES AND CERTAIN RESOLUTIONS OF THE VILLAGE OF BAYVILLE INTO A MUNICIPAL CODE TO BE DESIGNATED THE “CODE OF THE VILLAGE OF BAYVILLE”

This local law:

- (1) States the legislative intent of the Board of Trustees in adopting the Code.
- (2) Provides for the designation of the local laws, ordinances and certain resolutions of the Village of Bayville as the “Code of the Village of Bayville.”
- (3) Repeals local laws and ordinances of a general and permanent nature not included in the Code, except as provided.
- (4) Saves from repeal certain local laws and ordinances and designates certain matters not affected by repeal.
- (5) Retains the meaning and intent of previously adopted legislation.
- (6) Provides for the filing of a copy of the Code in the Village Clerk's office.
- (7) Provides for certain changes in or additions to the Code including the increasing of certain \$250 maximum fine amounts to \$500.
- (8) Prescribes the manner amendments and new legislation are to be incorporated into the Code.
- (9) Requires that Code books be kept up-to-date.

- (10) Provides for the sale of Code books by the village and the supplementation thereof.
- (11) Prohibits tampering with Code books, with offenses punishable by a fine of not more than \$500 or by imprisonment for not more than 15 days, or both.
- (12) As to land-use, amends:
 - a. Chapter 66, Subdivision of Land to exempt exchanges of land between contiguous property owners which do not create a new plot or any zoning violation.
 - b. Chapter 80, Zoning by: adding the definition of “building”; revising the definition of “family”; adding new definitions for “front yard area” and “paving (pave)”; establishing front yard area paving limits in all residential zoning districts; amending §80-61 regarding fences; and technical changes regarding enforcement.
- (13) Establishes severability provisions with respect to the Code generally.
- (14) Provides that the local law will be included in the Code as Chapter 1, Article I.

Copies of the local law described above and of the Code proposed for adoption thereby are on file in the office of the Village Clerk of the Village of Bayville, where the same are available for public inspection during regular office hours.

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that all interested persons will be given an opportunity to be heard on said proposed local law at the place and time aforesaid.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, pursuant to the requirements of the Open Meetings Law of the State of New York, that the Board of Trustees of the Village of Bayville will convene in public meeting at the place and time aforesaid for the purpose of conducting a public hearing on the proposed local law described above, and as deemed advisable by said Board, taking action on the enactment of said local law.

DATED: August 4, 2022

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
VILLAGE OF BAYVILLE

MARIA ALFANO-HARDY
VILLAGE CLERK

PROPOSED CODE ADOPTION LOCAL LAW
for the
CODE OF THE VILLAGE OF BAYVILLE, NEW YORK
August 2022

GENERAL CODE
781 Elmgrove Road
Rochester, New York 14624
800 836-8834
www.generalcode.com

ARTICLE I
Adoption of Code

§ 1-1. Code adopted; continuation of existing provisions.

In accordance with Subdivision 3 of § 20 of the Municipal Home Rule Law, the local laws, ordinances and certain resolutions of the Village of Bayville, as codified and consisting of Chapters 1 through 80 are hereby approved, adopted, and enacted as the Code of the Village of Bayville, hereinafter referred to as the "Code." The provisions of the Code, insofar as they are substantively the same as those of local laws, ordinances and resolutions in force immediately prior to the enactment of the Code by this local law, are intended as a continuation of such local laws, ordinances and resolutions and not as new enactments. This local law and the Code adopted hereby shall supersede and replace the 1981 Code of the Village of Bayville, as amended and supplemented.

§ 1-2. Code on file; additions and amendments.

- A. A copy of the Code has been filed in the office of the Village Clerk and shall remain there for use and examination by the public until final action is taken on this local law. Following adoption of this local law such copy shall be certified to by the Clerk of the Village of Bayville by impressing thereon the Seal of the Village, as provided by law, and such certified copy shall remain on file in the office of the Village Clerk, to be made available to persons desiring to examine the same during all times while said Code is in effect.
- B. Additions or amendments to the Code, when adopted in such form as to indicate the intent of the Board of Trustees to make them a part thereof, shall be deemed to be incorporated into such Code so that reference to the "Code of the Village of Bayville" shall be understood and intended to include such additions and amendments. Nothing contained in this local law shall affect the status of any local law, ordinance or resolution contained in the Code, and such local laws, ordinances or resolutions may be amended, deleted or changed from time to time as the Board of Trustees deems desirable.

§ 1-3. Notice; publication.

In the event that notice of enactment of this local law is required due to amendments adopted by way of this local law to zoning or land use provisions, or is otherwise required by law, the Clerk of the Village of Bayville shall cause notice of the enactment of this local law to be given in the manner required by law. The notice of the enactment of this local law, coupled with the availability of a copy of the Code for inspection by the public, shall be deemed, held and considered to be due and legal publication of all provisions of the Code for all purposes.

§ 1-4. Severability.

Each section of this local law and of the Code and every part of each section is an independent section or part of a section, and the holding of any section or a part thereof to be unconstitutional, void or ineffective for any cause shall not be deemed to affect the validity or constitutionality of any other sections or parts thereof.

§ 1-5. Repealer.

- A. Repeal of inconsistent enactments. All local laws and ordinances of a general and permanent nature, or parts of such local laws or ordinances, inconsistent with the provisions contained in the Code adopted by this local law are hereby repealed; provided, however, that such repeal shall only be to the extent of such inconsistency, and any valid legislation of the Village of Bayville which is not in conflict with the provisions of the Code shall be deemed to remain in full force and effect.
- B. Repeal of specific enactments. The Board of Trustees of the Village of Bayville has determined that the following local laws and/or ordinances are no longer in effect and hereby specifically repeals the following legislation:
 - (1) Chapter 12, Building Construction of the 1981 Code.
 - (2) Chapter 25, Ethics, Code of, of the 1981 Code, adopted 10-13-1975 by L.L. No. 16-1975.
 - (3) Chapter 60, Satellite Antennas, of the 1981 Code, adopted 4-23-1990 by L.L. No. 3-1990.

§ 1-6. Enactments saved from repeal; matters not affected.

The repeal of local laws and ordinances provided for in § 1-5 of this local law shall not affect the following classes of local laws, ordinances, rights and obligations, which are hereby expressly saved from repeal:

- A. Any right or liability established, accrued or incurred under any legislative provision of the Village of Bayville prior to the effective date of this local law or any action or proceeding brought for the enforcement of such right or liability.
- B. Any offense or act committed or done before the effective date of this local law in violation of any legislative provision of the Village of Bayville or any penalty, punishment or forfeiture which may result therefrom.
- C. Any prosecution, indictment, action, suit or other proceeding pending or any judgment rendered prior to the effective date of this local law brought pursuant to any legislative provision of the Village of Bayville.
- D. Any agreement entered into or any franchise, license, right, easement or privilege heretofore granted or conferred by the Village of Bayville.
- E. Any local law or ordinance of the Village of Bayville providing for the laying out, opening, altering, widening, relocating, straightening, establishing grade, changing name, improvement, acceptance or vacation of any right-of-way, easement, street, road, highway, park or other public place within the Village of Bayville or any portion thereof.
- F. Any local law or ordinance of the Village of Bayville appropriating money or transferring funds, promising or guaranteeing the payment of money or authorizing the issuance and delivery of any bond of the Village of Bayville or other instruments or evidence of the Village's indebtedness.

- G. Local laws or ordinances authorizing the purchase, sale, lease or transfer of property, or any lawful contract, agreement or obligation.
- H. The levy or imposition of special assessments or charges.
- I. The annexation or dedication of property.
- J. Any local law or ordinance relating to salaries and compensation.
- K. Any local law or ordinance amending the Zoning Map.
- L. Any local law or ordinance relating to or establishing a pension plan or pension fund for Village employees.
- M. Any local law or ordinance or portion of a local law or ordinance establishing a specific fee amount for any license, permit or service obtained from the Village.
- N. Any local law adopted subsequent to March 28, 2021.

§ 1-7. Changes in previously adopted legislation.

- A. In compiling and preparing the local laws, ordinances and resolutions for publication as the Code of the Village of Bayville, certain grammatical changes and other minor nonsubstantive changes were made in one or more of said pieces of legislation. It is the intention of the Board of Trustees that all such changes be adopted as part of the Code as if the local laws, ordinances and resolutions had been previously formally amended to read as such.
- B. In addition, the amendments and/or additions as set forth in Schedule A attached hereto and made a part hereof are made herewith, to become effective upon the effective date of this local law. (Chapter and section number references are to the local laws, ordinances and resolutions as they have been renumbered and appear in the Code.)
- C. Throughout the Code:
 - (1) All references to the “Dog Warden” are changed to “Dog Control Officer.”

§ 1-8. Titles and headings; editor's notes.

- A. Chapter and article titles, headings and titles of sections and other divisions of the Code are inserted in the Code and may be inserted in supplements to the Code for the convenience of persons using the Code and are not part of the legislation.
- B. Editor's notes indicating sources of sections, giving other information or referring to the statutes or to other parts of the Code are inserted in the Code and may be inserted in supplements to the Code for the convenience of persons using the Code and are not part of the legislation.

§ 1-9. Penalties for tampering with Code.

Any person who, without authorization from the Village Clerk, changes or amends, by additions or deletions, any part or portion of the "Code of the Incorporated Village of Bayville" or who alters or tampers with such Code in any manner whatsoever which will cause the legislation of the Incorporated Village of Bayville to be misrepresented thereby shall, upon conviction of such offense, be subject to a fine of not more than \$500 or by imprisonment for a term not exceeding 15 days, or by both such fine and imprisonment.

§ 1-10. When effective.

This local law shall take effect immediately upon filing with the Secretary of State of the State of New York.

Village of Bayville
Code Adoption Local Law

Schedule A
Specific Revisions at Time of Adoption of Code

Chapter 1, General Provisions.

Article II, General Penalty.

This article is adopted to read as follows:

§ 1-11. Penalties for offenses.

Except where the specific penalties are provided in a law of the county, state or federal government or in a local law, ordinance, rule or regulation of the Village for a particular offense, any person who shall commit an offense against any provision of the Code of the Village of Bayville or any provision of any Village local law, ordinance, rule or regulation, including the failure to comply with conditions of a decision of the Planning Board, Board of Appeals or Board of Trustees, by doing any act prohibited or declared to be an offense thereby, or by engaging in or exercising any business or occupation or doing anything for which a license or permit is required thereby without having a valid license or permit therefor as required, or by failing to do any act required by any such provision, or by failing to do any act when such provision declares such failure to be unlawful or to be an offense, shall, upon conviction thereof, be guilty of a violation pursuant to the Penal Law of the State of New York, punishable by a fine not exceeding \$1,000 or by imprisonment for not exceeding 15 days, or by both such fine and imprisonment.

§ 1-12. Continuing violations.

The continuation of an offense for each successive day shall constitute a separate violation, and the person or persons allowing or permitting the continuation of the offense may be punished as provided above for each separate violation.

§ 1-13. Additional remedies.

The imposition of a penalty as provided above, or as specifically provided in any chapter of the Code or other local law, ordinance, rule or regulation of the Village, shall be in addition to any injunctive or remedial relief or any civil penalty which is authorized under the laws of the State of New York or the ordinances and local laws of the Village of Bayville, with the same force and effect as though provided for herein. Such penalty shall not be deemed to be in lieu of any provision for revocation or suspension of any license or permit.

§ 1-14. Supersession of state statute.

This article shall supersede the provisions of Subdivision 1 of Village Law § 20-2006.

Chapter 3, Aircraft.

- A. In § 3-2, the definition of “aircraft” is amended as indicated: “... to include airplanes (including seaplanes), helicopters, drones, balloons...”
- B. Section 3-6 is amended to change the maximum fine amount from \$250 to \$500.

Chapter 4, Appearance Tickets.

- A. In § 4-1A, a new Subsection A(5) is added to read as follows:
Code Enforcement Officer.
- B. In § 4-1B, a new Subsection B(4) is added to read as follows:
Code Enforcement Officer.

Chapter 5, Assemblies, Mass Public.

- A. In § 5-7:
 - (1) Subsection A(1) is amended to delete the table of fees, and instead state that the fee shall be in an amount as set from time to time by resolution of the Board of Trustees.
 - (2) Subsection A(2) is amended to delete the specific fee amount of \$15, and instead state that such fee shall be in an amount as set from time to time by resolution of the Board of Trustees.
 - (3) Subsection C is amended to delete the specific fee amount of \$10, and instead state that such fee shall be in an amount as set from time to time by resolution of the Board of Trustees.
 - (4) Subsection D is amended to delete the specific fee amount of \$10, and instead state that such fee shall be in an amount as set from time to time by resolution of the Board of Trustees.
 - (5) Subsection E is amended to delete the specific fee amount of \$5, and instead state that such fee shall be in an amount as set from time to time by resolution of the Board of Trustees.
- B. Section 5-18A is amended to change the maximum fine amount from \$250 to \$500.

Chapter 7, Beaches.

- A. Section 7-8 is amended as indicated: “...such modest attire to cover the private parts of a body as the Board of Trustees may designate. Designated bathing areas...”
- B. Section 7-24 is amended to read as follows:
Except for the penalties provided in § 7-13 hereof, any person committing an offense against any provision of this chapter shall, upon conviction, be guilty of a violation pursuant to the Penal Law of the State of New York, punishable by a fine not exceeding \$500 or by imprisonment for a term not exceeding 15 days, or by both such fine and imprisonment.

Chapter 7A, Animals.

Article I, Feeding of Waterfowl and Pigeons.

Section 7A-4 is amended to change the maximum fine amount from \$250 to \$500, and to change the maximum term of imprisonment from 10 days to 15 days.

Chapter 9, Boats and Docks.

Section 9-20 is amended to change the maximum fine amount from \$250 to \$500.

Chapter 13, Building Construction Administration.

- A. Section 13-3A is amended as indicated: "...use, occupancy and maintenance thereof, and their related premises."
- B. Section 13-4 is amended as indicated: "...to issue summonses or appearance tickets for illegal violations of this chapter. The Board of Trustees hereby authorizes the Village Superintendent of Water or his designated deputy to issue summonses or appearance tickets for violations..."
- C. Section 13-7A is amended as indicated: "...of the occupancy of any building or structure or related improvement, or cause the same..."
- D. Section 13-8 is amended as indicated: "...upon receipt of the ~~legal~~ fees therefor..."
- E. Section 13-13 is amended as indicated: "...no person shall interfere with or prevent such entry; provided, however, that nothing in this section shall be construed as permitting an inspection under any circumstances under which a court order or warrant permitting such inspection is required, unless such court order or warrant shall have been obtained."
- F. Section 13-14D 14D is amended as indicated: "...accompanied by a certificate of a qualified electrical inspection firm ~~the New York Board of Fire Underwriters~~ and a final survey..."
- G. Section 13-19B is amended to change the maximum fine amount from \$500 to \$1,000, and to change the term of imprisonment from 30 days to 15 days.
- H. Section 13-19C is amended to read as follows:

Any owner, lessee, contractor, corporation, association, agent or other person who uses or maintains or causes to be used or maintained any building or premises or any part thereof in the Village except in conformity with the provisions of this chapter and with the provisions of the New York State Uniform Code, or who uses or maintains or causes to be used or maintained any building or part thereof in the Village, which has been erected, enlarged or altered other than in conformity with the provisions of this chapter and the New York State Uniform Code, or who in any manner commits an offense or causes an offense to be committed against any provision of this chapter or any provision of the New York State Uniform Code shall be deemed a violation pursuant to the Penal Law of the State of New York and subject to a fine of not more than \$1,000 for each offense or by imprisonment for not more than 15 days, or both such fine and imprisonment. Each day that an offense continues shall be deemed a separate violation.
- I. Former § 13-19D, which regarded the applicability of § 13-19 with regards to violations of the State Building Construction Code and the Multiple Residence Law, is repealed.
- J. Section 13-20B is amended to change "Board of Trustees" to "Mayor."

Chapter 14, Buildings, Numbering of.

- A. Section 14-7A is amended as indicated: “In Arabic numerals or alphabet letters.”
- B. Section 14-7B is amended as indicated: “A minimum height of ~~three (3)~~ four inches for residential properties...”
- C. Section 14-11 is amended to change the maximum fine amount from \$200 to \$500.

Chapter 15, Buildings, Unsafe.

- A. Section 15-2D is amended to read as follows:

In the event of neglect or refusal of the person served with a notice to comply with the same, a survey of said premises shall be made by an official of the Village and a practical builder, engineer or architect to be named by the Board of Trustees and a practical builder, engineer or architect appointed by the person notified as above, and the two surveyors named shall make the survey and report to the Village Board. In the event of refusal or neglect of the person so notified to appoint such surveyor, the report of the surveyor named by the Board of Trustees shall be acceptable. The sent notice shall contain a statement that, in the event the building or structure shall be reported unsafe or dangerous under such survey, application will be made at a special term of the Supreme Court in the judicial district in which the property is located for an order determining the building or structure to be a public nuisance and directing that it shall be repaired and secured or taken down and removed.

- B. Section 15-3 is amended to change the maximum fine amount from \$250 to \$500.

Chapter 20, Coastal Erosion Hazard Areas.

- A. Section 20-33 is amended to change the maximum fine from \$250 to \$500, and to change the maximum term of imprisonment from six months to 15 days.
- B. In § 20-34B, a new Subsection B(4) is added to read as follows:

Whenever applicable, notify adjacent municipalities pursuant to General Municipal Law § 239-nn.

Chapter 21, Curfew.**Article I, Halloween.**

- A. Section 21-6C is amended to change “19” to “18.”
- B. Section 21-8 is amended to change the maximum fine amount from \$250 to \$500.

Chapter 23, Dogs.

- A. Section 23-4 is amended to read as follows:

All dogs kept, harbored or maintained in the Incorporated Village of Bayville shall be licensed if running at large and/or over four months of age, and all owners must comply with all pertinent laws and provisions incident to obtaining such license and the wearing of a license tag by a dog. Dog licenses shall be obtained from the Town of Oyster Bay Town Clerk.

- B. Section 23-10 is amended to change the maximum fine amount from \$250 to \$500.

Chapter 23A, Electrical Standards.

- A. Section 23A-4 is amended to read as follows:

The Inspector and each of the duly appointed firms appointed by the Board of Trustees ("authorized electrical inspection firm") are hereby authorized to make inspections and reinspections of all electrical installations heretofore and hereafter described and to approve or disapprove the same. In no event, however, will the cost or expense of such inspections and reinspections be a charge against the Village of Bayville.

- B. Section 23A-5 is amended to read as follows:

It shall be the duty of the Inspector to report, in writing, to the Village Building Inspector, whose duty it shall be to enforce all the provisions of this chapter and all violations of or deviations from or omissions of the electrical provisions of the National Electrical Code and of all local laws or ordinances or the Building Code as referred to in this chapter insofar as any of the same apply to electrical wiring. The Inspector shall make inspections and reinspections of electrical installations in and on properties in the Village of Bayville upon the written request of an authorized official of the Village of Bayville or as herein provided. The Inspector is authorized to make inspections and reinspections of electrical wiring in buildings, devices, appliances and equipment, in and on properties within the Village of Bayville, where he deems it necessary for the protection of life and property. In the event of an emergency it is the duty of the Inspector to make electrical inspections upon the oral request of an official or officers of the Village of Bayville. It shall be the duty of the Inspector to furnish written reports to the proper officials of the Village of Bayville and owners and/or lessees of property where defective electrical installations and equipment are found upon inspection. He shall authorize the issuing of a certificate of compliance when electrical installations and equipment are in conformity with this chapter. He shall direct that a copy of the certificate of compliance be sent to the Village of Bayville to the attention of the Building Inspector.

- C. Section 23A-6 is amended to read as follows:

§ 23A-6. Unlawful acts.

- A. It shall be a violation of this chapter for any person, firm or corporation to install or cause to be installed or to alter electrical wiring for light, heat or power in or on properties in the Village of Bayville until an application for inspection has been filed with the authorized electrical inspection firm.*
- B. It shall be a violation of this chapter for a person, firm or corporation to connect or cause to be connected electrical wiring, in or on properties for light, heat or power, to any source of electrical energy supply prior to the issuance of a temporary certificate, or a certificate of compliance, by the authorized electrical inspection firm.*

- D. Section 23A-7 is amended to read as follows:

Any person, firm or corporation who shall violate any of the provisions of this chapter or any rule or regulation made pursuant thereto shall, upon conviction, be guilty of a violation pursuant to the Penal Law and may be punished by a fine of not more than \$500 or 15 days imprisonment, or both, and each day on which such violation continues shall constitute a separate offense.

- E. Section 23A-9 is amended as indicated: "...nor shall the Village of Bayville ~~or the New York Board of Fire Underwriters~~ be deemed to have assumed..."

Chapter 24A, Environmental Quality Review.

A. In § 24A-2:

- (1) The introductory paragraph thereof is amended to change the phrase “Section 617.12” to read as “Part 617.”
- (2) A new Subsection C is added to read as follows:

The Mayor, Board of Trustees, Board of Appeals and Planning Board from being exempt from the provisions of this chapter if they independently comply with the provisions of the Environmental Conservation Law and 6 NYCRR Part 617 and do not refer an action to the Environmental Conservation Commission.

- B. Section 24A-3 is amended to change each instance of the phrase “Section 617.12” to “Part 617.”
- C. Section 24A-6A is amended to change 15 days to 20 days.
- D. Section 24A-8 is amended to change every instance of the phrases “Section 617.12” and “Section 617.7(b)” to read as “Part 617.”
- E. Section 24A-9B is amended to change the phrase “Section 617.11” to read as “Part 617.”
- F. Section 24A-10A is amended to change the phrases “Section 617.7(d),” “Section 617-7(e) and (f),” and “Section 617.7(e) and (f)” to read as “Part 617.”
- G. Section 24A-10B is amended to change 10 days to 14 days.
- H. Section 24A-18 is amended as indicated: “...the procedures of Sections 617.4 and 617.8 of Part 617 of Title 6...”

Chapter 25, Ethics, Code of.

This chapter is adopted to read as follows:

§ 25-1. Purpose.

Pursuant to the provisions of § 806 of the General Municipal Law, the Board of Trustees of the Village of Bayville recognizes that there are rules of ethical conduct for public officers and employees which must be observed if a high degree of moral conduct is to be obtained and if public confidence is to be maintained in our unit of local government. It is the purpose of this chapter to promulgate these rules of ethical conduct for the officers and employees of the Village of Bayville. These rules shall serve as a guide for official conduct of the officers and employees of the Village of Bayville. The rules of ethical conduct of this chapter, as adopted, shall not conflict with but shall be in addition to any prohibition of Article 18 of the General Municipal Law or any other general or special law relating to ethical conduct and interest in contracts of municipal officers and employees.

§ 25-2. Definitions.

As used in this chapter, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

INTEREST - A direct or indirect pecuniary or material benefit accruing to a municipal officer or employee or his spouse, minor children and dependents; a firm, partnership or association of which such officer or employee is a member or employee; a corporation of which such officer or employee is an officer, director or employee; and a corporation any

stock of which is accrued or controlled directly or indirectly by such officer or employee, unless the context otherwise requires.

MUNICIPAL OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE - An officer or employee of the Village of Bayville, whether paid or unpaid, including members of any administrative board, commission or other agency thereof. No person shall be deemed to be a municipal officer or employee solely by reason of being a volunteer fireman or civil defense volunteer.

§ 25-3. Standards of conduct.

Every officer or employee of the Village of Bayville shall be subject to and abide by the following standards of conduct:

- A. Gifts. He/she shall not directly or indirectly solicit any gift or receive any gift having a value of \$75 or more, whether in the form of money, services, loan, travel, entertainment, hospitality, thing or promise or any other form, under circumstances in which it could reasonably be inferred that the gift was intended to influence him/her, or could reasonably be expected to influence him/her, in the performance of his/her official duties or was intended as a reward for any official action on his/her part.*
- B. Confidential information. He/she shall not disclose confidential information acquired by him in the course of his/her official duties or use such information to further his/her personal interest.*
- C. Representation before one's own agency. He/she shall not receive or enter into any agreement, express or implied, for compensation for services to be rendered in relation to any matter before any municipal agency of which he/she is an officer, member or employee or of any municipal agency over which he/she has jurisdiction or to which he/she has the power to appoint any member, officer or employee.*
- D. Representation before any agency for a contingent fee. He/she shall not receive or enter into any agreement, express or implied, for compensation for services to be rendered in relation to any matter before any agency of his municipality, whereby his/her compensation is to be dependent or contingent upon any action by such agency with respect to such matter, provided that this subsection shall not prohibit the fixing at any time of fees based upon the reasonable value of the services rendered.*
- E. Disclosure of interest in legislation. To the extent that he/she knows thereof, a member of the Board of Trustees and any officer or employee of the Village of Bayville, whether paid or unpaid, who participates in the discussion or gives official opinion to the Board of Trustees on any legislation before the Board of Trustees shall publicly disclose on the official record the nature and extent of any direct or indirect financial or other private interest he/she has in such legislation.*
- F. Investments in conflict with official duties. He/she shall not invest or hold any investment directly or indirectly in any financial, business, commercial or other private transaction which creates a conflict with his/her official duties. However, the investment in or ownership of less than 5% of the stock of a corporation whose stock is listed on the New York or American Stock Exchange or successors thereto shall not be deemed to be an investment in conflict with official duties.*
- G. Private employment. He/she shall not engage in, solicit, negotiate for or promise to accept private employment or render services for private interests when such employment or service creates a conflict with or impairs the proper discharge of his/her official duties.*

H. Future employment. He/she shall not, after the termination of service or employment with such municipality, appear before any board or agency of the Village of Bayville in relation to any case, proceeding or application in which he personally participated during the period of his service or employment or which was under his active consideration.

§ 25-4. Officer and employee claims.

Nothing herein shall be deemed to bar or prevent the timely filing by a present or former municipal officer or employee of any claim, account, demand or suit against the Village of Bayville or any agency thereof on behalf of him/herself or any member of his/her family arising out of any personal injury or property damage or for any lawful benefit authorized or permitted by law.

§ 25-5. Board of ethics.

- A. There is hereby established a Board of Ethics consisting of three members to be appointed by the Board of Trustees and who shall serve without compensation and at the pleasure of the Board of Trustees. A majority of such members shall be persons other than officers or employees of the Village of Bayville, but the Board shall include the Mayor of the Village of Bayville.*
- B. The Board of Ethics shall have the powers and duties prescribed by Article 18 of the General Municipal Law and shall render advisory opinions to the officers and employees of the Village of Bayville with respect to Article 18 of the General Municipal Law and any Code of Ethics adopted pursuant to such article, under such rules and regulations as the Board may prescribe. In addition, the Board may make recommendations with respect to the drafting and adoption of amendments to this Code of Ethics upon request of the Board of Trustees.*

§ 25-6. Distribution of code.

The Mayor of the Village of Bayville shall cause a copy of this Code of Ethics to be distributed to every officer and employee of the Village within 30 days after the effective date of this chapter. Each officer and employee elected or appointed thereafter shall be furnished a copy before entering upon the duties of his office or employment. Failure to distribute any such copy or failure of any officer or employee to receive such copy shall have no effect on the duty of compliance with such code, nor the enforcement of provisions thereof.

§ 25-7. Penalties for offenses.

In addition to any penalty contained in any other provision of law, any person who shall knowingly and intentionally violate any of the provisions of this code may be fined, suspended or removed from office or employment in the manner provided by law.

Chapter 27, Flood Damage Prevention.

- A. Section 27-9 is amended to change “\$250” to “\$500.”*
- B. Section 27-12B is amended to delete the specific fee amount of \$250, and instead state that such fee shall be in an amount as set from time to time by resolution of the Board of Supervisors.*

- C. Section 27-16C(1) is amended as indicated: "...other service equipment shall be located at or above the base flood elevation plus freeboard of two feet (610 millimeters) or be designed to prevent..."

Chapter 30, Gaming and Amusement Devices; Game Rooms.

A new § 30-6 is added to read as follows:

§ 30-6. Penalties for offenses.

Any person committing an offense against any provision of this chapter shall, upon conviction, be guilty of a violation pursuant to the Penal Law of the State of New York, punishable by a fine not exceeding \$500 or by imprisonment for a term not exceeding 15 days, or by both such fine and imprisonment.

Chapter 31, Graffiti.

- A. Section 31-6B is amended to change \$250 to \$500.
B. Section 31-8 is amended to change the mandatory minimum fine amount from \$250 to \$500.

Chapter 32, Indemnification and Defense; Drug and Alcohol Testing.

Article I, Protection of Employees.

- A. In § 32-1, the definition of "officer" is amended as indicated: "Board of Zoning Appeals member, Committee of Architect Review member, Environmental Conservation Commission member, any duly appointed..."
B. Section 32-2A is amended to change "five days" to "10 days."

Article II, Additional Benefits.

Section 32-3 is amended as indicated: "...afforded by Public Officers Law § 18 ~~(as amended by Chapter 277 of the Laws of 1981, effective June 22, 1981)~~ in addition to the local laws..."

Chapter 34, Landscaping and Spraying.

- A. Section 34-5 is amended as indicated: "Each applicant for a license shall pay a fee ~~of \$25 in an amount as shall be set from time to time by resolution of the Board of Trustees~~ as a nonrefundable filing fee with the application. ~~Fifty dollars~~ A fee in an amount as shall be set from time to time by resolution of the Board of Trustees shall be paid by the applicant to the Village Clerk or his or her designee upon issuance of the license."
B. Section 34-6 is amended as indicated: "All licenses issued pursuant to this chapter shall expire on ~~the last day of December~~ May 31 in the year in which they have been issued. Licenses may be renewed upon payment of an annual fee ~~of \$50 in an amount as shall be set from time to time by resolution of the Board of Trustees~~ before the first day of February of the next year. If the licensee fails to make proper timely application for renewal, he or she shall be required to reapply and pay an additional license fee as set forth in the preceding section in the amount ~~of \$25 as shall be set from time to time by resolution of the Board of Trustees~~ as a nonrefundable filing fee with the application and ~~\$50 a fee in an amount as shall be set from time to time by resolution of the Board of Trustees~~ paid upon the issuance of the license."

- C. In § 34-8, a new subsection F is added to read as follows:

Any live tree having a circumference in excess of 20 inches measured at a point which is 48 inches above the ground shall not be removed, unless an arborist appointed by the Village approves such removal.

- D. Section 34-9 is amended as indicated: “...shall be punishable by a ~~mandatory minimum fine of not less than \$100~~ fine not to exceed \$500 or a jail term of not more than 15 days, or both, for each and every separate offense...”

Chapter 36, Licensing.

- A. Section 36-14 is amended to read as follows:

The Village Fee Schedule, as set from time to time by resolution of the Board of Trustees, is on file in the Village offices.

- B. Section 36-19 is amended to change the maximum fine amount from \$250 to \$500.

Chapter 38, Littering.

Section 38-20 is amended to change the maximum fine amount from \$250 to \$500.

Chapter 42, Noise.

- A. Section 42-3A is amended as indicated: “...pursuant to the provisions of ~~§ 15~~ of the Vehicle and Traffic Law...”
- B. Section 42-3B is amended as indicated: “...quiet, comfort or repose of ~~persons in any dwelling, hotel or other type of residence~~ a reasonable person of normal sensitivity.”
- C. Section 42-3N is amended as indicated: “...shall make any noise or operate or cause to be operated...”
- D. Section 42-6 is amended to read as follows:

Any person committing an offense against any provision of this chapter shall, upon conviction, be guilty of a violation pursuant to the Penal Law of the State of New York, punishable as follows:

(a)

For conviction of a first offense: fine not exceeding \$500 or imprisonment for a period not to exceed 15 days, or both.

(b)

For conviction of a second offense, both of which were committed within a one-year period: fine not less than \$1,000 nor more than \$1,500 or imprisonment for a period not to exceed 15 days, or both.

(c)

For a conviction of a third or subsequent offense, all of which were committed within a one-year period: fine not less than \$1,500 nor more than \$5,000 or imprisonment for a period not to exceed 15 days, or both.

(d)

The owner, general agent, licensee or tenant of a building, premises or part thereof where such offense has been committed shall, upon conviction, be guilty of a violation.

Chapter 43, Open Space Preservation.

A. Section 43-2B is amended to read as follows:

The stated goal in Section IV of the LWRP under “Proposed Land Acquisition and Park Improvement Projects.”

B. Section 43-8A is amended to change the maximum fine amount for a first offense from \$1,500 to \$500, and to change the maximum fine amount for a second or subsequent offense from \$2,500 to \$1,000.

Chapter 46, Peace and Good Order.

Article I, Prohibited Acts.

- A. Section 46-4B is amended to change the phrase “Mayor of the Village” to “Building Inspector.”
- B. Section 46-4C is amended as indicated: “...the said condition may be abated by the ~~State Commissioner~~, the Building Inspector...”
- C. Section 46-7 is amended to change the maximum fine amount from \$250 to \$500.

Article II, Alcoholic Beverages.

Section 46-14 is amended to read as follows:

Each violation of this article shall constitute a separate offense and, upon conviction, shall be subject to a fine of not more than \$500 or imprisonment for not more than 15 days, or both.

Article III, Temporary Storage Containers and Dumpsters.

Section 46-17G is amended as indicated: “...shall be punishable by a fine not to exceed ~~\$250~~ \$500 and/or imprisonment for a term of not more than 15 days ~~in the Nassau County Correctional Center.~~”

Chapter 48, Peddling and Soliciting.

A. In § 48-4:

(1) Subsection D is amended to read as follows:

Presentation of driver's license or other photographic identification to be copied by Village Clerk.

(2) Former Subsections E and F of the 1981 Code, concerning applicants' business references and fingerprinting, respectively, are repealed.

B. Former § 48-5, Bonding requirements, is repealed.

C. In § 48-6:

- (1) Subsection A is amended as indicated: "...except ~~between the hours of~~ from 8:00 a.m. ~~and 6:00 p.m.~~ to one hour after sunset..."
- (2) Former Subsection E of the 1981 Code, regarding entrance upon the land of any Village resident without express invitation, is repealed, and former Subsections F, G, H, I and J of the 1981 Code are redesignated as Subsections E, F, G, H and I, respectively.

D. Former § 48-8 of the 1981 Code, Exemptions from bond requirements, is repealed.

E. In § 48-9:

- (1) Former Subsection C of the 1981 Code, concerning persons selling fruits and farm products that they themselves have grown, is repealed.
- (2) A new subsection F is added to read as follows:

Any person or individual that is merely proselytizing for either religious or political purposes, distributing religious or political handbills at no cost, or exercising the right to anonymous religious or political speech without soliciting any funds and without selling any goods or soliciting for contributions.

F. Section 48-10 is amended to change the minimum fine amount from \$250 to \$500.

Chapter 50, Picnic Areas.

Section 50-5 is amended to change the maximum fine amount from \$250 to \$500.

Chapter 52, Plumbing.

A. Former § 52-1 of the 1981 Code, Examining Board, is repealed; former § 52-2, License required, is redesignated as § 52-1.

B. Section 52-1 is amended to read as follows:

No person, firm or corporation shall engage in or conduct the business of plumbing within the Incorporated Village of Bayville unless licensed as set forth below.

C. A new § 52-2 is added to read as follows:

Any person who is a duly licensed master plumber in the Town of Oyster Bay or any other town in Nassau County or Suffolk County, New York, and who submits a certified copy of a certificate of competency issued by the Plumber's Examining Board of such municipality shall be entitled to receive a license upon payment of the required fees.

D. Former § 52-3 of the 1981 Code, Application for examination, former § 52-4 of the 1981 Code, Qualifications, and former § 52-5 of the 1981 Code, Examinations; exceptions, are repealed; former §§ 52-6, 52-7, and 52-8 of the 1981 Code are redesignated as §§ 52-3, 52-4, and 52-5, respectively.

E. Section 52-3A is amended as indicated: "...shall pay ~~the a~~ nonrefundable sum ~~of \$100~~ as a filing fee with his application and a further ~~sum of \$50~~ fee upon being issued a certificate or a master plumber's license, each of which fees to be in amounts as set from time to time by resolution of the Board of Trustees."

F. Section 52-3B is amended to read as follows:

Each applicant shall pay a nonrefundable sum as a filing fee with his application, said fee is to be in an amount as set from time to time by resolution of the Board of Trustees.

- G. Section 52-3D is amended to delete the specific fee amount of \$50, and instead state that such fee shall be in an amount as set from time to time by resolution of the Board of Trustees.
- H. Section 52-6 is amended to change “workman’s” to “workers’.”
- I. Former § 52-9 of the 1981 Code, Bond, is repealed; former § 52-10 of the 1981 Code is redesignated as § 52-6.
- J. Section 52-11C is amended as indicated: “...new vertical or horizontal water supply, soil, waste or vent pipes...”
- K. Section 52-12C is amended to delete the specific fee amounts of \$50 and \$10, and instead state that such fee shall be in amounts as set from time to time by resolution of the Board of Trustees.
- L. Section 52-12D is amended to delete the specific fee amount of \$5, and instead state that such fee shall be in an amount as set from time to time by resolution of the Board of Trustees.
- M. Section 52-15 is amended to delete the specific fee amounts of \$30, \$25, and \$30, and instead state that each such fee shall be in an amount as set from time to time by resolution of the Board of Trustees.
- N. Section 52-16 is amended to change “\$250” to “\$500.”

Chapter 54, Printed Material, Unsolicited.

- A. A new § 54-4D is added to read as follows:

It shall be unlawful for any person, whether licensed or unlicensed, while conducting the business of a peddler or solicitor, to enter upon any residential premises in the Village where the owner, occupant or person legally in charge of the premises has posted, at the entry to the premises or at the entry to the principal building on the premises, a sign bearing the words "no peddlers," "no solicitors" or words of similar import.

- B. Section 54-6 is amended to read as follows:

Any person found guilty of violating any provision of this chapter shall, upon conviction, be punished by a fine not exceeding \$500 or a term of imprisonment of not more than 15 days, or both. Each incident and each day for which a violation occurs or continues shall constitute a separate offense.

Chapter 54A, Procurement Policy.

- A. Section 54A-2B is amended to change “§ 175-b of the State Finance Law” to “§ 162 of the State Finance Law.”
- B. In § 54A-3, the table is amended to add “/email” immediately following each instance of the word “fax.”
- C. Section 54-A6A is amended as indicated: “...Pursuant to Subdivision 2g of General Municipal Law § 104-b(2)(f), the procurement policy may...”
- D. Section 54A-6B(1) is amended as indicated: “...Deputy Village Attorney; Village Prosecutor; Acting Village Justice, ~~Assessor~~ and/or any Special Counsel retained...”

Chapter 56, Refuse and Cesspool Waste.

A new § 56-11 is added to read as follows:

A person convicted of violating any provision of this chapter shall be guilty of a violation which is punishable as follows: by a maximum fine of not more than \$500 or 15 days' imprisonment, or both.

Chapter 57, Recycling.

Section 57-7 is amended to read as follows:

A person convicted of violating any provision of this chapter shall be guilty of a violation which is punishable as follows: by a maximum fine of not more than \$500 or 15 days' imprisonment, or both.

Chapter 61, Sewage Disposal Systems, Individual.

Section 61-2 is amended to change the maximum fine amount from \$250 to \$500.

Chapter 62, Signs.

- A. Former § 62-11 of the 1981 Code, Penalties for offenses, is redesignated as § 62-12; former § 62-12 of the 1981 Code, Garage or yard sales, is redesignated as § 62-11.
- B. Former Section 62-11C of the 1981 Code, concerning penalties for offenses of the provisions of § 62-11, is repealed.
- C. Section 62-12 is amended to change “\$250” to “\$500.”

Chapter 63B, Stormwater Control.

Section 63B-14D is amended to read as follows:

Penalties. Any person who violates the provisions of this chapter shall be guilty of a violation punishable by a fine not exceeding \$500 or imprisonment for a period not to exceed 15 days, or both, for conviction of a first offense; for conviction of a second offense, both of which were committed within a period of one year, punishable by a fine not more than \$1,000 or imprisonment for a period not to exceed 15 days, or both; and upon conviction of a third or subsequent offense, all of which were committed within a period of three years, punishable by a fine not more than \$2,000 or imprisonment for a period not to exceed 15 days, or both.

Chapter 64, Streets and Sidewalks.**Article I, Excavations and Obstructions.**

- A. Section 64-3 is amended to delete the specific fee amount of \$25, and instead state that such fee shall be in an amount as set from time to time by resolution of the Board of Trustees.
- B. Section 64-6 is amended to change the maximum fine amount from \$250 to \$500.

Article II, Cleaning of Sidewalks.

Section 64-8.1 is amended to change the maximum fine amount from \$250 to \$500.

Chapter 66, Subdivision of Land.

- A. Section 66-1A is amended as indicated: “~~By authority of the resolution adopted October 27, 1937, by the Board of Trustees of the Incorporated Village of Bayville, Nassau County, New York, pursuant to the provisions of Article 6-A Pursuant to the provisions of Article 7 of the Village Law of the State of New York...~~”
- B. A new Section 66-1.1 is added to read as follows:
- § 66-1.1. Approval requirements; exceptions.**
- A. *Planning Board approval required. No person, firm, corporation, partnership or association, as owner, lessee or contract vendee, shall divide any parcel of land in the Village into two or more parcels, lots, plots or sites of land by sale, gift, exchange, offer or unconditional contract unless such division of land has been finally approved by the Village’s Planning Board after a public hearing in accordance with Article II, of this chapter, as the same may from time to time exist, and in accordance with the law of the State of New York.*
- B. *Exceptions. The foregoing provisions of § 66-1.1A shall not apply to, and there is no prohibition against, transfer of land between owners of contiguous property within the Village, provided that:*
- (1) *Such transfer is a transfer by sale, gift, exchange, offer or contract by which the land so transferred becomes part of the identical ownership of land contiguous thereto;*
- (2) *No new lot is created by such transfer; and*
- (3) *Such transfer does not create any lot sizes, setbacks or uses which do not conform to the requirements of Chapter 80, Zoning, as it then exists, in all respects.*
- C. In § 66-2:
- (1) The definition of the term “official map” is amended as indicated: “The map established by the Village Board under ~~§ 179e~~ § 7-724 of the Village Law...”
- (2) The definition of the term “official subdivision date” is amended as indicated: “...submitted to the Planning Board, as provided in ~~§ 179-k~~ § 7-728 of the Village Law...”
- (3) The definition of “village development plan or village plan” is amended as indicated: “...pursuant to ~~§ 179-gg~~ § 7-722 of the Village Law...”
- D. Section 66-4B(6) is amended to delete the specific fee amount of \$300, and instead state that such fee shall be in an amount as set from time to time by resolution of the Board of Trustees.
- E. A new § 66-4B(9) is added to read as follows:
- Notice and referral to other agencies and neighboring municipalities shall be in compliance with General Municipal Law §§ 239-l through 239-n and 239-nn.*
- F. Section 66-5C(1) is amended as indicated: “...pursuant to ~~§ 89~~ § 1116 of the Public Health Law
- G. Section 66-5E is amended as indicated: “...in accordance with ~~§ 179-k~~ § 7-728 of the Village Law...”

- H. Section 66-5F is amended as indicated: “After careful study, the Planning Board ~~may~~ shall, within ~~45~~ 62 days from the official submittal date of the subdivision plat, approve, modify or disapprove such plat in compliance with all requirements of Village Law § 7-728...”
- I. Section 66-5H(3) is amended as indicated: “...by the County Planning Commission in the manner specified by ~~§ 239-k~~ of the General Municipal Law.”
- J. Section 66-6A is amended to read as follows:
- Improvements and performance/payment bond. Prior to an action by the Planning Board approving a subdivision plat, the applicant shall be required to complete, in accordance with the Planning Board's decision and to the satisfaction of the appropriate Village departments, all the street, sanitary and other improvements specified in the action approving said plat, or, as an alternative, to file with the Village Board a bond in an amount estimated by the Planning Board to secure to the Village the satisfactory construction and installation of and payment for the uncompleted portion of the required improvements. A period of one year, or such other period as the Planning Board may determine appropriate, within which required improvements must be completed, shall be specified by the Planning Board and expressed in the bond. Such performance/payment bond shall comply with the requirements of § 7-730 of the Village Law, and shall be satisfactory to the Village Board as to form, sufficiency and manner of execution. The bond shall provide that an amount determined adequate by the Planning Board shall be retained for a period of one year after the date of completion of the required improvements to assure their satisfactory condition. All required improvements shall be made by the applicant at his expense without reimbursement by the Village or any district therein.*
- K. Section 66-7 is amended to change “90 days” to “62 days.”
- L. Section 66-19 is amended to change “\$250” to “\$500.”

Chapter 69, Taxation.

Article II, Utility Tax.

- A. Section 69-3 is amended to change “§ 6-640 of the Village Law” to “§ 5-530 of the Village Law,” and to change “Article 3-B of the Public Service Law” to “Transportation Law § 170 et seq.”
- B. Section 69-4 is amended to read as follows:
- Words and phrases used in this chapter, unless otherwise noted, shall have the same meanings as ascribed to them in § 186-a of the Tax Law.*
- C. Section 69-6 is amended as indicated: “...on or before each ~~March 25~~ April 15 hereafter, a return for the ~~twelve (12) calendar months terminating February 28~~ twelve-month period ending December 31 of the previous year, including any period ...”
- D. Section 69-12 is amended as indicated: “...and be paid by the utility, and ~~shall not~~ may be added as a separate item to bills rendered by the utility to customers ~~or others but shall constitute a part of the operating costs of such utility.~~”

Chapter 72, Trees.

- A. Section 72-5D is amended as indicated: “...an application and payment of fee ~~of \$25, plus \$10 per tree to be removed,~~ in an amount as set from time to time by resolution of the Board of Trustees and submission of other required...”
- B. Section 72-6A is amended as indicated: “...such cost shall become a lien on the property and adding the total sum due to the Village Tax on said real property ~~and the resolution assessing such costs shall be recorded with the Village Clerk and the office of the County Clerk~~ or may be collected by court action.”
- C. Section 72-9 is amended to change the maximum fine amount from \$250 to \$500.

Chapter 74, Vehicles, Abandoned.

Section 74-4 is amended to change the maximum fine amount from \$250 to \$500.

Chapter 75, Vehicles and Traffic.

Section 75-28 is amended as indicated: “...not to exceed ~~the sum of \$25 per day or fraction thereof~~ an amount as set from time to time by resolution of the Board of Trustees. Proof of payment by the village...”

Chapter 76, Vehicles, Recreational.

Section 76-3 is amended to change the maximum fine amount from \$250 to \$500.

Chapter 77, Water.

Section 77-23A is amended to read as follows:

Penalty. Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions of this chapter shall be subject to a fine of not more than \$500 or imprisonment for not more than 15 days, or both.

Chapter 77A, Waterfront Consistency Review.

Section 77A-7A is amended to read as follows:

A person who violates any of the provisions of or who fails to comply with any conditions imposed by this chapter shall be guilty of a violation, punishable by a fine not exceeding \$500 or by imprisonment for a term not exceeding 15 days, or both, for a conviction of a first offense and punishable by a fine not exceeding \$1,000 or by imprisonment for not more than 15 days, or both, for a conviction of a second or subsequent offense. For the purpose of conferring jurisdiction upon courts and judicial officers, each week of continuing violation shall constitute a separate additional offense.

Chapter 80, Zoning.

A. In § 80-3:

- (1) A new definition for the term “building” is added to read as follows:

Any structure having a roof supported by columns or by walls and intended for the shelter, housing or use of persons or the enclosure of animals or chattels. The

term "building" shall also include the words "principal building" and "accessory building." The word "building" shall be construed as though followed by the words "or part thereof."

- (2) The definition of “family” is amended to read as follows:

FAMILY –

One or more persons living together in a single dwelling unit as a traditional family or the functional equivalent of a traditional family. It shall be a rebuttable presumption that four or more persons living together in a single dwelling unit, who are not related by blood, adoption, or marriage, do not constitute the functional equivalent of a traditional family. In determining the functional equivalent of a traditional family, the following criteria shall be present:

- (1) The group shares the entire dwelling unit.*
- (2) The group lives and cooks together as a single housekeeping unit.*
- (3) The group shares expenses for food, rent, utilities or other household expenses.*
- (4) The group is permanent and stable, and not transient or temporary in nature.*
- (5) Any other factor reasonably related to whether the group is the functional equivalent of a family.*

- (3) A new definition for the term “front yard area” is added to read as follows:

An open, unoccupied space on the same lot with a building situated between the street wall and the street line of the lot extending to the sidelines (including corner side street line) of the lot.

- (4) A new definition for the term “garage, public” is added to read as follows:

A building or part thereof, other than a private garage or commercial storage garage, used for the storage and/or repair of motor vehicles for a fixed fee or charge or where any such vehicles are kept for hire.

- (5) A new definition for the term “paving (pave)” is added to read as follows:

To cover or lay (a road, walk driveway, etc.) with concrete, asphalt, stones, gravel, bricks, tiles, wood, or the like, to make it a firm level surface.

- (6) The definition of “outdoor swimming pool” is amended to change “18 inches” to “24 inches.”

- (7) The definition of “transient rental” is amended as indicated: “...in exchange for such rental occupation for a period of ~~less than~~ not exceeding 14 days except:”

- B. In § 80-15, a new Subsection D is added to read as follows:

Front yard area paving limit. Not more than 48% of the front yard area shall be paved. On corner plots, only one front yard area may be paved.

- C. In § 80-21, a new Subsection C is added to read as follows:

- Front yard area paving limit. Not more than 26% of the front yard area shall be paved.
On corner plots, only one front yard area may be paved.*
- D. In § 80-27, a new Subsection C is added to read as follows:
- Front yard area paving limit. Not more than 19% of the front yard area shall be paved.
On corner plots, only one front yard area may be paved.*
- E. In § 80-33, a new Subsection C is added to read as follows:
- Front yard area paving limit. Not more than 25% of the front yard area shall be paved.
On corner plots, only one front yard area may be paved.*
- F. In § 80-39, a new Subsection C is added to read as follows:
- Front yard area paving limit. Not more than 16% of the front yard area shall be paved.
On corner plots, only one front yard area may be paved.*
- G. In § 80-60D:
- (1) Former Subsection D(5) is redesignated as Subsection D(7).
 - (2) A new Subsection D(5) is added to read as follows:

Air-conditioning condensing units that project into required side and rear yards by no more than four feet, but not nearer than three feet from any property line.
 - (3) A new Subsection D(6) is added to read as follows:

Generators that project into required side and rear yards by no more than eight feet, but not nearer than eight feet from any property line.
 - (4) A new Subsection D(8) is added to read as follows:

Electrical heating, ventilating or air conditioning (HVAC) units (only if screened with dense evergreen plantings or solid fencing), and any other electrical mechanical system, or surface water heating system, shall be permitted to project no more than four feet into any side yard or six into any rear yard, but not nearer than three feet from any property line.
 - (5) A new Subsection D(9) is added to read as follows:

Internal combustion generators (only if screened with dense evergreen plantings or solid fencing) shall be permitted to project no more than eight feet into a side or rear yard, but not nearer than six feet from any property line.
- H. In § 80-61:
- (1) Subsection B is amended as indicated: "...pickets, board or PVC ~~a cultivated or natural growth of shrubs or trees.~~"
 - (2) Subsection C is amended to read as follows:

Fence height shall be measured from the natural grade along the base to the top thereof, except that any fence post finial less than four inches long shall not be calculated in the maximum fence height measurement.
 - (3) Subsection I is amended as indicated: "...street, road or public right of way, except fences with integral fence posts that appear the same on both sides of the fence. No fence..."

I. In § 80-79:

- (1) Subsection A is amended to delete the specific fee amount of \$50, and instead state that such fee shall be in an amount as set from time to time by resolution of the Board of Trustees.
- (2) Subsection B is amended to delete the specific fee amount of “\$50 plus \$10 for each additional thousand or fraction thereof,” and instead state that such fee shall be in an amount as set from time to time by resolution of the Board of Trustees.
- (3) Subsection C is amended to delete the specific fee amount of “\$150 plus additional extras,” and instead state that such fee shall be in an amount as set from time to time by resolution of the Board of Trustees.

J. In § 80-80, a new Subsection D is added to read as follows:

Any nonconforming, use as hereinbefore or hereinafter referred to, is an affirmative defense in any action or proceeding.

K. Section 80-82 is amended as indicated: “...building or structure that would ~~change~~ decrease the building’s...”L. Section 80-85 is amended as indicated: “...shall be obtained as provided in ~~the ordinance adopted April 13, 1964, providing for administering and enforcing the State Building Construction Code Chapter 13, Building Construction Administration.~~”

M. In § 80-86A:

- (1) Subsection A(1) is amended as indicated: “...under the provisions of this chapter or decision of the Board of Appeals shall be considered a ~~misdemeanor~~ violation...”
- (2) Subsection A(1)(a) is amended to change the maximum term of imprisonment from six months to 15 days.
- (3) Subsection A(1)(b) is amended to change the maximum term of imprisonment from six months to 15 days.
- (4) Subsection A(1)(c) is amended to change the maximum term of imprisonment from six months to 15 days.
- (5) Subsection A(2) is amended as indicated: “~~Such violations being deemed misdemeanors and each~~ Each week’s continued violation shall constitute a separate additional violation.”

N. Section 80-86D is amended as indicated: “...provisions of this chapter or decision of the Board of Appeals may be enforced on behalf of the Village by the collection of civil fines for each violation thereof not to exceed ~~\$250~~ \$500. Each day...”

O. In § 80-88, a new Subsection C is added to read as follows:

Failure to comply with a condition or requirement of a Board of Appeals variance or special permit shall be a violation of this chapter.

P. Section 80-91A is amended as indicated: “The Board of Trustees may from time to time, on its own motion, amend, supplement or change the regulations and districts herein established. ~~On petition, after such public notice and hearing as is required by the Village Law, the Board of Trustees may amend, supplement or change the regulations and districts herein established whenever the owners of 50% or more of the frontage in any district or part thereof shall~~

~~present a petition duly signed and acknowledged to the Board of Trustees, requesting an amendment, supplement, change or repeal of the regulations prescribed for such district or part thereof. It shall be the duty of the Board of Trustees to vote upon such petition within 90 days after the filing of the same by the petitioners with the Village Clerk, and after holding such public hearings as may be required by law.”~~

Q. In § 80-101:

(1) Subsection A is amended to change “45 days” to “62 days.”

(2) Subsection B is amended to change “45 days” to “62 days.”

R. Section 80-108A is amended as indicated: “...exterior of new construction and of certain exterior alterations and to existing...”

S. Section 80-111A is amended as indicated: “...any new building or for the exterior alteration or reconstruction of an existing...”

T. Section 80-114 is amended to delete the specific fee amount of \$250 and instead state that such fee shall be in an amount as set from time to time by resolution of the Board of Trustees.

U. Section 80-141B is amended to read as follows:

A violation of this article is hereby declared to be a violation punishable by the fines set forth in § 80-86.